INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Sun Pharma Labaratories
Limited (the “Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2022, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements, including a Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies and Other Explanatory Information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (the "Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2022, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the
Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.



Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeqguate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
toissue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
defect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
arissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such contrals.



= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the "Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we
give in the "Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books:

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account:

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(&) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as



(f)

(g)

(h)

on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such contrals, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure 2" to this report;

In Our opinion, the managerial remuneration (in form of sitting fees) for the year ended
March 31, 2022 has been paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance
with the provision of section 197 of the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations in its Ind AS financial
statements - Refer note no. 37 to Ind AS Financials Statements; which would
impact its financial position:

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, onlong - term
contracts including derivative contracts Refer note no. 22 and note no. 25 to the
Ind AS Financials Statements:

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (@)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief and

read with note no. 56 (h) to the Ind AS Financial Statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief and

read with note no. 56 (i) to the Ind AS Financial Statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities ("Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

(¢c)Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.



V. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Charterad Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Amit Singh

Partner

Membership Number: 408869
UDIN: 22408869AJSKJI2093
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2022



Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of our report of even date under the heading "Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements".

Re: Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited (the “Company")

i.(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(b)

(c)

(B) The Company has maintained proper records, where relevant, showing full
particulars of Intangible Assets,

All items of Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by
management during the year but there is a reqgular programme of verification which, in
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) as
disclosed in note no. 51 (3) to the Ind AS Financial Statements included in Property,
Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the Company, except for the following
immovable properties for which registration of title deeds is in process:

Description Gross Held in Whether Period Reason for not
of property Carrying name of promoter, held - being held in name
value (in director (In Years) of company*
Millions) or their
relative or
employee
Leasehold Sun No =13 The title deeds are
Land 103.36 | Pharma in the name of
Drugs erstwhile
Private companies (as
Limited mentioned under
No column - held in
Freehold Sun 5-10 name of); merged
Land 37.88 | Pharma with the Company
Drugs No under the relevant
Private provisions of the
Limited Companies Act,
Freehold Sun 10 1956/2013 in
Land 0.30 | Pharma terms of approval
Medication of the Honourable
Private High Courts of
Lifnited respective states.
Total 141.54

‘In respect of building where the Company is entitled to the right of occupancy and use
and disclosed as Property, Plant and Equipment in the Ind AS financial statements, we




report that the instrument entitling the right of occupancy and use of building, are in the
name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

(d) The Company does not follow revaluation model for subsequent measurement of its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use Assets) or Intangible Assets.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company and hence not reported upon.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)e) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not reported upon.

ii. (a) The Inventory has been physically verified by management during the year except for
inventories lying with third parties which has been confirmed by them. In our opinion,
the frequency of verification by management is reasonable and the coverage and
procedure for such verification is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed in respect such inventories.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR five
crores in aggregate from banks or financial institutions during the year on the basis of
security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not reported upon.

iii. (@) During the year the Company has provided [oans to companies, other parties the
details of which are as follows:

Particulars Amount in INR
million

Aggregate amount loans granted during the

year
- Subsidiaries 3.20
- Others 86,580.72

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet
date in respect of above cases

- Subsidiaries 613.90

- Others 7 48,838.03

During the year the Company has not provided advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to any entity and hence not commented upon by us.

(b) During the year, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all
loans to companies or any other parties are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. The
Company has not provided guarantees, given security or granted advances in nature of
loans during the year and hence not commented upon by us.

(c) The Company has granted loans to companies and other parties where the schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment



vii.

and receipts are regular. The Company has not granted any advances in the nature of loan
and hence not commented upon by us.

(d) There are no amounts of loans granted which are overdue for more than ninety days as
at March 31, 2022. Accordingly, we have not commented on the steps taken by the
Company for recovery of the principal and interest.

(e) There were no loans granted to companies and other parties which had fallen due
during the year. The Company has not granted any advances in the nature of loan.
Accordingly the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)e) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company and hence not reported upon. :

(F) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3iii(F) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company and hence not reported upon.

The Company has not provided any guarantees or security to any entity covered by the
provisions of section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company in respect of section 186 of the Act,
pertaining to these transactions. In respect of investments made and loans provided, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act. During the year, the
Company has not granted any loans to parties covered under section 185 of the Act.

The Company has.neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not
reported upon.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to
the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Act, related to the manufacture of applicable pharmaceutical
products, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specifiad accounts and records have
been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the
same.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities, where applicable, though there has been a
slight delay in a few cases. According to the information and explanations given to us and
based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) There have been no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess, and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of dispute
except as follows:



Name of the statute | Name of Amount Year to which it Forum where the
Dues (INR in pertains** dispute is pending
millions)*
Income Tax Act, Income 22263 | AY.2013-14 Income Tax Appellate
1961 taxes, P » Tribunal
Iﬂtel’est. 6,009.?0 Fl’{'.;m AY _016'1? o
and penaity to 2017-18 Commissioner of
Income Tax (Appeals)
. FromA.Y.2013-14
RETB.O4 | 45301516 Gujarat High Court
Various A.Y. from
- 2003-04 to 2012-
16.39 13 Bombay High Court
The Central Excise Excise Various F.Y. from CESTAT
Act, 1944 duty, 966.24 | 1994-95 to 2015-
interest 16
and penalty )
Various F.Y. from COMMISSIONER
23.16 | 2005-06 to 2018- (APPEALS)
19
Interest Various F.Y. from CESTAT
346.86 | 2012-13 to 2016-
17
Goods and Services Goods and F.Y.2018-19 and High Court
Tax, 2017 service tax 681.21 | 2019-20
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax Various F.Y. from CESTAT
110.67 | 2010-11 to 2014-
15
Sales Tax Act / VAT | Sales Tax, F.¥.2014-15 and High Court
(Various States) Interest 41.01 | 2016-17
and
Penalty
2013-14 and Commissioner
11096 | 2017-18

“Amount includes interest till the date of demand and are net of advances
paid/adjusted uncler protest.
" AY.: Assessment year; F.Y.: Financial year

viii.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously not

recorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not reported

upon.

% (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings orin
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.




Xi.

xiii.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the leans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company,
no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company,
the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiary and associate companies. The Company does
not have any joint venture, Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not reported upon,

(The Company has not raised any loan during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiary and associate companies. The Company does not
have any joint venture. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not reported upon.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public
offer / further public offer (including debt instruments). Hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence
not reported upon.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares /fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under
audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company and hence not reported upon.

(a) No material fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(xi)a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not
reported upon.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in
Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, with the Central Government.

(c) We have read the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the
year. Whilst, these complaints are substantially immaterial, the Company has a
process of evaluation and redressal of all such complaints as required by applicable
regulations. Post evaluation by the Company, we have considered these complaints
in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)Xa) to (c) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Act,
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the Ind AS
financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The
provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon by us.



Xiv.

XV.

XVI.

XVii.

Xviii.

Xix.

(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit
report, for the period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with its directors as covered by section 192 of the Act and
hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company and hence not reported upon.

(@) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of
1934) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause (xvi)a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not
reported upon.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the
Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations
made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(xvid('c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hance not reported
upan.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xviXd) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the
immediately preceding financial year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not reported
upon.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.
Accordingly, requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company and hence not reported upon.

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios disclosed in note no. 51(4) to the Ind AS financial statements,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Ind AS financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due.



. (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that
are required to be transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Act, in
compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This
matter has been disclosed in note no. 50 to the Ind AS financial statements.

(b)There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required
to be transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section 6 of
section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note no. 50 to the
Ind AS financial statements.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Amit Singh

Partner

Membership Number: 408869
UDIN: 22408869AJSKJI2093
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2022



Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report Of Even Date On The Ind AS Financial
Statements Of Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements of
Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
issued by ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the cornpany are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Ind AS Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
with reference to Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by
the ICAI.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Amit Singh

Partner

Membership Number: 408869
UDIN: 22408869AJSKJI2093
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2022



SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED 2 in Million
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022
Particulars Notes As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
() Property, plant and equipment 3 (a) &3(b) 11,690.8 12,376.8
(b) Capital work-in-progress 51 1,485.5 156.1
(c) Intangible assets L) 35,254.7 47,9713
(d) Intangible assets under development 51 33.0 58.0
(e) Investments in the nature of equity in subsidiaries 5 19.0 19.0
{f) Investments in associates 6 91,464.5 91,464.5
(g) Financial assets
(i) Loans 7 56,172.4 51,789.7
{ii) Other financial assets 8 617.6 1701
() Income tax assels (Net) 9 12,5134 11,399.2
(i) Other non-current assets 10 127.6 1,146.6
Total non-current assets 209,378.5 216,551.3
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventeries Lk 6,393.6 6,061.2
(b) Financial assets
(i} Investments 12 33,0424 379.8
(i) Trade receivables 13 16,613.3 13,696.2
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14 8.5 3.2
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 15 36.2 7.3
(v) Loans 16 30.6 253
{vi) Other financial assets 17 1,961.3 3,037.7
(c) Other current assets 18 3,066.0 2,084.7
Total current assets 61,151.9 25,295.4
TOTAL ASSETS 270,5304 241,846.7
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 19 400.5 4005
{b) Cther equity 20 251,971.8 223,445.8
Total equity 252,372.3 223,846.3
Liabilities
{1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabililies
(i) Barrowings 21 2,299.2 4,643.1
(i) Lease liabilities 45 172.8 188.9
(iif) Other financial liabilities 22 151.3 171.1
(b) Provisions 23 854.1 665.3
Total non current liabilities 3477.4 5,668.4
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabiliies
(i) Borrowings 24 2,512.0 2,677.0
(ii) Lease liabiliies 45 143 15.3
(iii) Trade payables
(a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 11 492.1 152.6
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enlerprises 41 4,155.4 3,519.6
(iv) Other financial liabilities 25 3,687.4 2,758.2
(b) Other current liabilities 26 701.6 413.3
(c) Provisions 27 3,116.9 2,796.0
Total current liabilities 14,680.7 12,332.0
Total liabilities (1+2) 18,158.1 18,000.4
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2705304 241,846.7

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the linancial statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2)

As per our report of even date

ForSRARBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 324982E/ E300003

per Amit Singh
Pariner

Membership No. 408869
Mumbai, May 27, 2022

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
Sun Pharma Laboratorles Limited

SAILESH T, DESAI
Director
DIN No. ; 00005443

KIRTI GANORKAR

Chief Execulive Officer

MEETAL SAMPAT
Company Secretary

Membership No.:A18249

Mumbai, May 27, 2022

SUDHIR V. VALIA
Director
DIN No. : 00005561

C. S. MURALIDHARAN
Chief Financial Officer



SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 Zin Million
Particulars Notes For Year ended For Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(l) Revenue from operations 28 87,5325 68,802.3
{Il) Other income 29 4,398.4 2,826.8
(IN) Total Income (1 + If) 91,930.9 71,629.1
(IV) Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 30 13,220.0 10,976.5
Purchase of stock-in-trade 6,333.4 4,837.9
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 31 (323.3) (720.6)
Employee benafit expense 32 10,515.9 8,551.8
Finance costs 3 357.4 (93.1)
Depreciation and amortisalion expense 3(a),3(b) &4 17,008.1 16,496.3
Other expenses 3 10,143.0 8,998.9
Tolal expenses (IV) §7,254.5 49,047.7
(V) Profit before tax (lll-1V) 34,676.4 22,5681.4
{Vl) Tax expense:
Current tax 35 6,070.0 3,9729
Deferred tax 49 281 (6.8)
Total tax expense (VI) 6,098.1 3,966.1
(Vl) Profit for the year (V-VI) 28,578.3 18,615.3
(Vill) Other comprehensive income
a) ltems that will not be reclassified to the stat 1t of profit or loss
(i) Gain/ (loss) on remeasurement of defined benefil plans (102.2) 231
(i) Income tax on above 35.7 (8.1)
Total (a) (66.5) 15.0
b) Items that will be reclassified to the statement of profit or loss
(i) Gain / (loss ) on debt instruments through other comprahensive income 21.8 (3.6)
(il) Income lax on above (7.6) 1.3
Total (b) 14.2 (2.3)
Total other comprehensive income (VIll) ( a + b) {52.3) 127
(IX) Total comprehensive income for the year (VIl+VIIl) 28,526.0 18,628.0
Earnings per equity share (face value per equity share - Z 10) 43
Basic and diluted (in T) 713.56 464.80

The accompanying notes are an inlegral part of the financial statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2)

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC &COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 324982E/ E300003

per Amit Singh

Partner

Membership No. 408869
Mumbai, May 27, 2022

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited

SAILESH T. DESAI
Director
DIN No, : 00005443

KIRTI GANORKAR
Chief Executive Officer

MEETAL SAMPAT
Company Secretary
Membership No.:A18249
Mumbai, May 27, 2022

SUDHIR V. VALIA
Director
DIN No. : 00005561

C. S. MURALIDHARAN
Chief Financial Officer



SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

T in Million
Equity share Reserve and surplus Other Total
capital Comprehensive
Income (OCI)
Capital reserve Capital Retained earnings| Debt instrument
Particulars redemption through other
reserve comprehensive
income
Balance as at April 01, 2020 400.5 185,654.3 #0.0 19,175.4 (11.9) 205,218.3
Profit for the year - - - 18,615.3 - 18,615.3
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - “*15.0 2.3) 127
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 2 18,630.3 (2.3) 18,628.0
Balance as at March 31, 2021 400.5 185,654.3 0.0 37,805.7 (14.2) 223,846.3
Profit for the year - - . 28,578.3 = 28,578.3
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - ** (66.5) 14.2 (52.3)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 28,511.8 14.2 28,526.0
Balance as at March 31, 2022 400.5 185,654.3 #0.0 66,317.5 - 252,372.3

(#)3 10,000

** Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2)

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No: 324982E/ E300003

per Amit Singh

Partner

Membership No. 408869
Mumbai, May 27, 2022

Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited

SAILESH T. DESAI
Director
DIN No. : 00005443

KIRTI GANORKAR
Chief Executive Officer

MEETAL SAMPAT
Company Secretary

Membership No.:A18249

Mumbai, May 27, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

SUDHIR V. VALIA
Director
DIN No. : 00005561

C. S. MURALIDHARAN
Chief Financial Officer



SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

T in Million
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 34,676.4 22,581.4
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 17,008,1 16,496.3
Loss on sale/write off of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, net 26.7 50.4
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, net (70.8) 4
Finance costs 357.4 {93.1)
Interest income (3,595.2) (2,534.9)
Net gain on sale of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (420.7) (30.9)
Net gain arising on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (99.3) -
Net loss on sale of financial assets measured at fair value through Other
comperhensive income 34.3 -
Provision / write off / (reversal) for doubtful trade receivables / advances 57.8 8.0
Net unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss (72.6) (15.9)
Operating profit before working capital changes 47,9021 36,461.3
Movements in working capital
{Increase) / decrease in inventories (332.4) (1,013.3)
(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables (2,919.7) 2,550.4
(Increase) / decrease in other assets 77.4 92.7
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 969.1 7931
Increase / (decrease) in provisions 407.5 455.3
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities 1,240.3 452.5
Cash generated from operations 47,344.3 39,792.0
Income tax paid (net of refund) (7,208.2) (4,115.2)
Net cash from operating activities (A) 40,136.1 35,676.8
B. Cash flow from investing activitles
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment (including capital work-in-progress, (4,017.7) (427.9)
intangible assets and intangible assets under development)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 85.8 2.6
Purchase of investments
Others (125,194.3) (23,170.5)
Proceeds from sale of investments
Others 93,039.2 23,201.4
Loans / inter corporate deposits
Given to
Holding company (85,611.2) (95,133.0)
Subsidiary companies (3.2) (8,000.3)
Fellow subsidiary companies (903.1) 0.4)
Received back / matured from
Holding company 81,362.1 62,804.8
Subsidiary companies - 1,663.4
Fellow subsidiary companies 753.1 .
Others - 794.4
Bank balance not considered as cash and cash equivalents
Fixed deposits (34.5) (4.2)
Fixed deposits matured - 3.9
Interest received 3,171.6 2,352.8
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (37,332.2) (35,813.0)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 212.8 355.4
Repayment of borrowings (2,753.9) (81.4)
Finance costs (226.5) (120.4)
Payment of lease liabilties (31.0) (31.4)
Net cash from / (used in) financing activities (C) (2,798.6) 122.2
Net Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 53 (14.0)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3.2 17.2
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8.5 3.2




SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

T in Million

Notes: As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of
Balances with banks in current account 5.9 1.3
Cash on hand 2.6 1.9
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 14) 8.5 3.2
For changes in liabilities arising from financing activities as required under IND AS 7, refer note 36 and note 45
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2)
As per our report of even date
ForSRBC & COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No: 324982E/E300003
per Amit Singh SAILESH T. DESAI SUDHIR V. VALIA
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 408869 DIN No. : 00005443 DIN No. : 00005561
Mumbai, May 27, 2022
KIRTI GANORKAR C. S. MURALIDHARAN
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

MEETAL SAMPAT
Company Secretary
Membership No.:A18249
Mumbai, May 27, 2022




SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

1. General information

Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited ("the Company") is a public limited company incorporated and
domiciled in India. The Registered office of the Company is located at Sun House, Plot No. 201
B/1, Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East) Mumbai 400063. The Com pany is engaged in the
business of manufacturing, developing and marketing a wide range of branded and generic
formulations. The Company has various manufacturing locations spread across the country with

trading and other incidental and related activities.

The financial statement were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors

on May 27, 2022
2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Statement of compliance

The Company has prepared financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) together with the comparative period data as at and for the

year ended March 31, 2021.
2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared‘on the historical cost basis, except for:

(i certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each

reporting period;

(ii) Non-current assets classified as held for sale which are measured at the lower

of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell; and
(iii) derivative financial instrument and

(iv) defined benefit plans — plan assets that are measured at fair values at the end

of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods

and services.

The financial statements are presented in ¥ and all values are rounded to the nearest Million ®

000,000) upto one decimal, except when otherwise indicated

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardiess of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset
or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of Ind AS 116, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,

such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date:

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are

observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.



SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

The Company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in
these financial statements.

a. Current vs Non-current

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
. Held primarily for the purpose of trading
. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign currency

On initial recognition, transactions in currencies other than the Company's functional currency (foreign
currencies) are translated at exchange rates on the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate on that date. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items or on translating monetary items at rates different from those at which they were translated on
initial recognition during the period or in previous period are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise except for:

¢ exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for
future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded
as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings (see note 2.2.q).

e exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency
risks (see note 2.2.i below for hedging accounting policies).

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are measured
using the exchange rates at the date of initial transaction.

¢. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker of the Company is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

d. Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated in balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Assets in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at
cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs if
capitalisation criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition



SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

for the intended use. Subsequent expenditures are capitalised only when they increase the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which they relate. Such assets are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and is
recognised in profit or loss.

ltems of property, plant and equipment acquired through exchange of non-monetary assets are
measured at fair value, unless the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance or the fair value
of either the asset received or asset given up is not reliably measurable, in which case the acquired
asset is measured at the carrying amount of the asset given up.

Depreciation is recognised on the cost of assets (other than freehold land and Capital work-in-progress)
less their residual values on straight-line method over their useful lives as indicated in Part C of
Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over period of the
lease agreement or the useful life, whichever is shorter. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset Category No. of years
Factory Buildings 10-30
Buildings other than Factory Buildings 60

Plant and equipment 3-25
Vehicles 5-10

Office equipment 2-5
Furniture and fixtures 10

Software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third-party vendors and which is an integral
part of a tangible asset, including consultancy charges for implementing the software, is capitalised as
part of the related tangible asset. Subsequent costs associated with maintaining such software are
recognised as expense as incurred. The capitalised costs are amortised over the lower of the estimated
useful life of the software and the remaining useful life of the tangible fixed asset.

e. Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and that have finite useful lives are measured at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent
expenditures are capitalised only when they increase the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which they relate.

The expenditure to be capitalised include the cost of materials and other costs directly attributable to
preparing the asset for its intended use. Other development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

Payments to third parties that generally take the form of up-front payments and milestones for in-
licensed products, compounds and intellectual property are capitalised since the probability of expected
future economic benefits criterion is always considered to be satisfied for separately acquired intangible
assefs.



SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Acquired research and development intangible assets which are under development, are recognised
as In-Process Research and Development assets (“IPR&D"). IPR&D assets are not amortised, but
evaluated for potential impairment on an annual basis or when there are indications that the carrying
value may not be recoverable. Any impairment charge on such IPR&D assets is recognised in profit or
loss. Intangible assets relating to products under development, other intangible assets not available for
use and intangible assets having indefinite useful life are tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the assets may be impaired. All other intangible assets are
tested for impairment when there are indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The consideration for acquisition of intangible asset which is based on reaching specific milestone that
are dependent on the Company’s future activity is recognised only when the activity requiring the
payment is performed.

Subsequent expenditures are capitalised only when they increase the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which they relate. All other expenditures, including expenditures on
internally generated goodwill and brands, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets.
Intangible assets that are not available for use are amortised from the date they are available for use.

The estimated useful lives for Product related intangibles and Other intangibles ranges from 5 to 12
years.

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

De-recognition of intangible assets

Intangible assets are de-recognised either on their disposal or where no future economic benefits are
expected from their use. Gain or loss arising on such de-recognition is recognised in profit or loss, and
are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of
respective intangible assets as on the date of de-recognition.

f. Investments in the nature of equity in subsidiaries and associates

The Company has elected to recognise its investments in equity instruments in subsidiaries and
associates at cost in the separate financial statements in accordance with the option available in Ind
AS 27, ‘Separate Financial Statements’. Impairment policy applicable on such investments is explained
in Note 2.2.g. '

9. Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or the cash-generating unit
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. For the purpose of impairment
testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the
“cash-generating unit”).

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss if the estimated recoverable amount of an asset
or its cash generating unit is lower than its carrying amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit on
a pro-rata basis.



SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

In respect of other asset, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting
date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

h. Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group)
and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected
to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised.

i. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the
date the Company commits to purchase or sale the financial assets.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
e Debt instruments at amortised cost
e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
e Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
°

Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A 'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in Other Income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss.



SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Debt instrument at FVTOC!
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured as at FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b) The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income
(OCI). However, the Company recognises interest income, impairment losses &reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the profit or loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss. Interest earned whilst
holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria
for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised
cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all the changes
in the profit or loss.

Equity instruments

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in OCI. The Company makes
such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and
is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on
the instrument, including foreign exchange gain or loss and excluding dividends, are recognised in the
OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of investment.
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the profit or loss. ’

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

e The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive contractual cash flows from the asset or
has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to
a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset
to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would
have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the Trade receivables or any contractual right to
receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS
115,

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition. As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine
impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for
forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company's own equity instruments.

Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound financial instruments (convertible notes) issued by the Company

are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts and lease liabilities, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments

Subsequent measurement

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or is
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term or on
initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by Ind AS 109. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated
as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For
instruments not -held-for-trading financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognised in OCI, unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability's credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. These gains/
loss are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. All other changes in fair value of such liability are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at
amortised cost in subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are
subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance
costs' line item in the profit or loss.

After initial recognition, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability
at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
If not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amount of income recognised.
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Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not financial assets within the scope of
Ind AS 109 are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are
not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as
effective hedging instruments.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial
liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a
change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected
to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a
result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes
are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins
or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial
assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of
the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not
restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as cross currency swap, principal only swap,
options and interest rate swaps to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or
loss.

Dividend distribution to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognises a liability to make dividend distributions to equity holders of the Company
when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company.
As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders.
A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

J. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset,
the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company
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has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and
(iif) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i} Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

e Building 2-20 years
e Leasehold land 90-196 years

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (9)
Impairment of non-financial assets.

ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the
lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are
considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Rental income from operating lease is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation
to compensate for the Company's expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised
in the year in which such benefits accrue. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.
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k. Inventories

Inventories consisting of raw materials and packing materials, work-in-progress, stock-in-trade, stores
and spares and finished goods are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of
all categories of inventories is based on the weighted average method.

Cost of raw materials and packing materials, stock-in-trade, stores and spares includes cost of
purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to its present location and condition.

Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprises direct material, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

The factors that the Company considers in determining the allowance for slow moving, obsolete and
other non-saleable inventory include estimated shelf life, planned product discontinuances, price
changes, ageing of inventory and introduction of competitive new products, to the extent each of these
factors impact the Company's business and markets. The Company considers all these factors and
adjusts the inventory provision to reflect its actual experience on a periodic basis

I. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral
part of the Company’s cash management.

m. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
1o settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Restructuring

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Company has a detailed formal restructuring plan
and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to
implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. The measurement of a
restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditure arising from the restructuring, which are
those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the
ongoing activities of the entity.

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An
onerous contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefit expected to be
received from the contract.
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Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Contingent liability is disclosed for,

(i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the
Company, or

(i) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. A contingent asset is disclosed where
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. Contingent assets are assessed continually and, if it is
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are
recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

n. Revenue
Sale of goods

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is
the principal in its revenue arrangements, since it is the primary obligor in all of its revenue arrangement,
as it has pricing latitude and is exposed to inventory and credit risks. Revenue is stated net of goods
and service tax and net of returns, rebates and other similar allowances. These are calculated on the
basis of historical experience and the specific terms in the individual contracts.

In determining the transaction price, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the
existence of significant financing components, noncash consideration, and consideration payable to the
customer (if any).The Company estimates variable consideration at contract inception until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Sales returns

The Company accounts for sales returns accrual by recording an allowance for sales returns concurrent
with the recognition of revenue at the time of a product sale. This allowance is based on the Company's
estimate of expected sales returns. With respect to established products, the Company considers its
historical experience of sales returns, levels of inventory in the distribution channel, estimated shelf life,
product discontinuances, price changes of competitive products, and the introduction of competitive
new products, to the extent each of these factors impact the Company’s business and markets. With
respect to new products introduced by the Company, such products have historically been either
extensions of an existing line of product where the Company has historical experience or in therapeutic
categories where established products exist and are sold either by the Company or the Company’s
competitors.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. |f the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer

pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional.
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Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.,
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Coniract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Com pany
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability
is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Rendering of services

Revenue from services rendered is recognised in the profit or loss as the underlying services are
performed. Upfront non-refundable payments received are deferred and recognised as revenue over
the expected period over which the related services are expected to be performed.

Royalties

Royalty revenue is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreement (provided that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably). Royalty arrangements that are based on production, sales and
other measures are recognised by reference to the underlying arrangement.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income is recognised when the Company'’s right to receive the payment is established, which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition. '

o. Government grants

The Company recognises government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the
conditions attached to them will be complied with, and the grants will be received. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset,
the Company deducts such grant amount from the carrying amount of the asset.

p. Employee benefits
Defined benefit plans

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan which requires contribution to be made to a
separately administered fund.

The liability in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated using the projected unit credit method with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. The present value of
the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The currency and
term of the government bonds shall be consistent with the currency and estimated term of the post-
employment benefit obligations. The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised in the
profit or loss as employee benefits expense, reflects the increase in the defined benefit obligation
resulting from employee service in the current year, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements. Past
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service costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. The net interest cost
is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the
fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in profit or loss. Actuarial
gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to OCI in the period in which they arise and is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss when the
Company is demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan
to either terminate employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as
a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary
redundancies are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss if the Company has
made an offer encouraging voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the
number of acceptances can be estimated reliably.

Short-term and Other long-term employee benefits

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional
amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting
date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-
term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are
provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end.
Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of other long-term employee benefits is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and previous periods. That
benefit is discounted to determine its present value.

Defined contribution plans

The Company's contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as and when
the services are received from the employees entitling them to the contributions. The Company does
not have any obligation other than the contribution made.

q. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded
as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use.

r. Exceptional items

Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense, including tax items, within the statement of profit
and loss from ordinary activities which are non-recurring and are of such size, nature or incidence that
their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance of the Com pany.

s. Income tax

Income tax expense consists of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in OCI or directly in equity, in which case it
is recognised in OCI or directly in equity respectively. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable profit for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax assets and tax
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liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to
set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Company.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realised. Withholding tax arising out of payment of dividends to shareholders under the Indian
Income tax regulations is not considered as tax expense for the Company and all such taxes are
recognised in the statement of changes in equity as part of the associated dividend payment.

Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent
there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the period for which
the MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised
as an asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid
convincing evidence no longer exists.

Accruals for uncertain tax positions require management to make judgments of potential exposures.
Accruals for uncertain tax positions are measured using either the most likely amount or the expected
value amount depending on which method the entity expects to better predict the resolution of the
uncertainty. Tax benefits are not recognised unless the management based upon its interpretation of
applicable laws and regulations and the expectation of how the tax authority will resolve the matter
concludes that such benefits will be accepted by the authorities. Once considered probable of not being
accepted, management reviews each material tax benefit and reflects the effect of the uncertainty in
determining the related taxable amounts.

In Sikkim Il & Guwahati where the Company is entitled to a tax holiday under Income Tax Act, 1961
enacted in India, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of temporary differences
which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the Company’s gross total income is subject
to the deduction during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which
reverse after the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the temporary differences
originate. However, the Company restricts recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent it is probable
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be
realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the temporary differences which originate first are
considered to reverse first.

L. Earnings per share

The Company presents earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

The number of equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits
and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial statements
by the Board of Directors.

u. Recent Accounting pronouncements

Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2022.
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NOTE : 3 (a)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Particulars Freehold land | Leasehold land| Buildings Plantand | Furniture and| Vehicles Oifice equipments T«:lailll| e
Equipment fixtures

At cost or deemed cost
As at April 01, 2020 38.1 - 6,506.8 9,213.4 254.2 88.5 354.9 16,455.9
Additions # = 51.9 355.7 200 7.4 56.9 491.9
Disposals - - - (3.9) - (8.7) (20.8), (33.4)
As at March 31, 2021 38.1 - 6,558.7 9,565.2 2742 87.2 391.0 16,914.4
Addilions 3z - 17.5 270.8 4.0 9.6 B85.7 390.8
Disposals - (113.7) (12.1) (0.1) (16.4) (4.9) (147.2)
As at March 31, 2022 41.3 - 6,462.5 9,823.9 278.1 80.4 471.8 17,158.0
Accumutfated depreciation and impairment
As at April 01, 2020 - - 858.8 2,595.7 100.3 46.7 284.0 3,885.5
Deprecialion expense - = 183.9 727.0 278 15.4 arz 991.3
Disposals - - - (2.3) - (7.6) (20.6) (30.5)
As at March 31, 2021 - = 1,042.7 3,320.4 128.1 54.5 300.6 4,846.3
Deprecialion expense - - 187.7 754.4 291 14.1 52.6 1,037.9
Disposals - . {102.8) (8.0) - (16.4) (4.3) (130.4)
As at March 31, 2022 = 7 1,127.6 4,066.8 157.2 53.2 348.9 5,753.7
Net book value
As at March 31, 2021 38.1 = 5,5616.0 6,244.8 146.1 327 90.4 12,068.1
As at March 31, 2022 41.3 - 5,334.9 5,757.1 120.9 27.2 122.9 11,404.3
Footnotes:
(i) Building includes ¥ 1.8Million { March 31, 2021 ¥ 1.8 Million) and  1,772.0 Million ( March 31, 2021 ¥ 1,772.0 Million) towards cost of non- convertible Preference shares of face value  of ¥ 10/-

each and compulsorily convertible Debentures of lace value of ¥ 10,000/ each respectively in a company entilling he right of occupancy and use of premises.

(if) The aggregate depreciation has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

NOTE : 3 (b)
RIGHT OF USE ASSETS
2 in Million
Particulars Leasehold land Buildings Total

As at April 01, 2020 125.0 169.2 294.2
Additions - 535 83.5
Disposals - . -
As at March 31, 2021 125.0 222.7 347.7
Additions - 0.8 0.8
Disposals 3.5 1.2 4.7
As at March 31, 2022 121.5 * 2223 343.8
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
As at April 01, 2020 1.2 15.8 17.0
Depreciation expense 1.1 209 22.0
As at March 31, 2021 23 36.7 39.0
Depreciation expense 1.2 171 18.3
Disposals 3 & 3
As at March 31, 2022 35 53.8 57.3
Net book value
As at March 31, 2021 122.7 186.0 308.7
As at March 31, 2022 118.0 168.5 286.5

(i) For details of Ind AS 116 disclosure refer Nole 45.




SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCICAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

NOTE: 4
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Other than internally generaled

¥ in Million
Particulars Computer Product related Total
Software intangibles
At cost or deemed cost
As at April 01, 2020 54.2 139,836.1 139,890.3
Additions 6.0 30.0 36.0
Disposals . _ =
As at March 31, 2021 60.2 139,866.1 139,926.3
Additions 10.8 3,2245 3,235.3
Disposals - = E
As at March 31, 2022 71.0 143,090.6 143,161.6
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
As at April 01, 2020 8.3 76,463.7 76,472.0
Amortisalion expense 9.2 15,473.8 15,483.0
Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2021 17.5 91,937.5 91,955.0
Amortisalion expense 1.0 15,940.9 15,951.9
Disposals ] - .
As at March 31, 2022 28.5 107,878.4 107,906.9
Net book value
As at March 31, 2021 427 47,928.6 47,971.3
As at March 31, 2022 42.5 35212.2 35,254.7
Fooinotes

() The aggregale amortisation has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(ii} Intangible assels consisling of trademarks, designs, technical knowhow, non compete fees and other intangible assels are available to lhe Company in perpeluity. The amortisable amount of
Intangible assets Is arrived at based on the management's best estimates of useful lives of such assels after due consideralion as regards their expected usage, the product life cycles, lechnical and
technological obsolescence, markel demand for products, competition and their expected fulure benelits to the Company.

(iif) Product related intangibles (Refer note 51)



SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCICAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

NOTE : 5
INVESTMENTS IN THE NATURE OF EQUITY IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES (NON-CURRENT)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Quantity Tin Million Quantity T in Million
Equity instruments
Unquoted (At cost less impairment in value of investments, if any)
Universal Enterprises Private Limited
Shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid 450,000 12.5 450,000 12.5
Sun Pharmaceutical Medicare Limited #
Shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid 250,000 25 250,000 25
Sun Pharma Distributors Limited
Shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid 150,000 1.5 150,000 15
Realstone Infra Limited 250,000 25 250,000 2.5
Shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid
19.0 19.0
Aggregate amount of investments before impairment 19.0 19.0
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments - -

# The Board of Directors of Sun Pharmaceutical Medicare Limited, wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, at its meeting held on

May 26, 2022, approved the Scheme of Amalgamation for merger of Sun Pharmaceutical Medicare Limited (
with Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited ("Transferee Company”),

"Transferor Company"),
the holding company of the Company and the ultimate holding

company of the Transferor Company, to be effective from such date as may be decided under the authorization by the Board of
Directors of the Transferor Company and the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company and / or such other date as may be
approved by the National Company Law Tribunal pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of Companies Act, 2013 and other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder.

NOTE : 6
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (NON-CURRENT)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Quantity T in Million Quantity T in Million
Unquoted (At cost less impairment in value of investments, if any)
Equity instruments
Sun Pharma Holdings
Ordinary Shares of USD 1 each fully paid 50,000 34 50,000 3.4
Preference shares
Sun Pharma Holdings 1,300,000,000 91,148.6 [ 1,300,000,000 91,148.6
5% Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of USD 1 each fully
paid
Limited Liability Partnership
Generic Solar Power LLP
[ ¥ 28,760 (As at March 31, 2021 ¥ 28,760)]- 0.0 0.0
Trumpcard Advisors and Finvest LLP 3125 312.5
3125 3125
91,464.5 91,464.5
Aggregate amount of investments before impairment 91,464.5 91,464.5

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Particulars.

LOANS (NON-CURRENT)
Unsecured, considered good
Loans lo employees/ others
Loans to related parties (Refer note 47) (%)

(") Loan given to various parties at prevailing market rates for the purpose of their business

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (NON-CURRENT)

Security deposils (unsecured, considered goods)
Interest accrued

INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET) (NON-CURRENT)
Advance income tax *

[Net of provisions of ¥ 27,448.4 Million (March 31, 2021 : ¥ 21,354.4 Million)

*Includes amount paid under protest

OTHER ASSETS (NON-CURRENT)
Capital advances

Prapaid expenses

Balances with government authorities®

*includes amount paid under protest

INVENTORIES

Lower of cost and net realisable value
Raw materials and packing malerials
Goods-in-transit

Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Stock-in-trade
Stores, Spares

Zin Million
As at As al
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

0.5 0.2
56,171.9 51,789.5
56,172.4 51,789.7
181.3 1701

436.3 -
617.6 170.1
12,5134 11,399.2
12,513.4 11.399.2
78.3 1,078.8
04 1.0
48.9 66.8
127.6 1,146.6
3,141.9 3,053.4
253.8 335.4
3,395.7 3,388.8
798.1 815.0
1,600.6 1,149.4
586.8 697.8
124 10.2
6,393.6 6,061.2

(i) Inventory write downs are accounted, considering the nalure of inventory, estimatad shall life, planned product, discontinuances, price changes, ageing of inventory
and introduction of competitive new products. Write downs of inventories amounted to 2 760.7 Million (As at March 31, 2021 ¥ 896.8 Million), The changes in write downs

are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and lass,

(ii) The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year is disclosed in Notes 30, 31 and 34 and as "Purchases of slock-in-trade" in the statement of profit

and loss.



SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCICAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

NOTE : 12
INVESTMENTS (CURRENT)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Quantity % in Million Quantity T in Million

Investments in Debentures / Bonds
Quoted (Fair value through other comprehensive income)

National Highways Authority of India-8.2 - - 61,809 63.9
Bonds of ¥ 1,000 each fully paid -January 25, 2022

Power Finance Corporation Ltd -SR-1 8.2 - - 142,393 147.2
Bonds of ¥ 1,000 each fully paid - February 01, 2022

Indian Railway Finance Corporation Ltd -8/8.15 - - 163,131 168.7
Bonds of T 1,000 each fully paid - February 23, 2022

Unquoted - (At fair value through profit or loss)*
Mutual Funds

Aditya Birla Sun Lifeliquid Fund Growth Direct Plan 11,557,361 3,965.6 - -
Axis Liquid Fund-Direct Growth 847,348 2,003.2 - -
Baroda Bnp Paribas Liquid Fund - Direct Growth 1,245,399 3,054.9 - -
Dsp Blackrock Liquidity Fund-Direct Plan-Growth 987,841 3,006.0 - -
Hdfc Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option 718,949 3,008.6 - -
Icici Prudential Liquid - Direct Plan - Growth 10,460,161 3,297.6 - -
Invesco India Liquid Fund-Direct-Growth 512,427 1,498.0 - -
Jm Liquid Fund-Growth-Direct Plan 17,211,673 1,001.9 - -
Kotak Liquid Scheme Plan A - Direct Plan - Growth 232,440 1,000.2 - -
L&T Liquid Fund -Direct -Growth I 344,099 1,003.0 - -
Mahindra Manulife Liquid Fund Direct Growth 726,255 1,005.3 - -
Nippon India Liquid Fund - Dir - Growth 415,465 2,163.8 - -
Pgim India Liquid Fund Direct Growth 2,165,664 600.8 - -
Sundaram Liquid Fund Direct Growth 1,373,990 | 2,581.8 - -
Tata Liquid Fund-Growth-Direct Plan 378,867 1,273.2 - -
Uti - Liquid Cash Plan Dir - Growth 739,264 2,578.5 - -
33,042.4 379.8

* Investments in Mutual Funds have been fair value at closing net asset value (NAV).
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Particulars

TRADE RECEIVABLES
Unsecured
Considered goed
Credit impaired

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss allowance)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with banks

In current accounts
Cash on hand

BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN DISCLOSED IN NOTE 14 ABOVE
Deposit accounts

LOANS (CURRENT)
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Loans to employees

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT)

Security deposils (unsecured, considered good)

Interest accrued

Refund due from Government Autherities (Refer note 53)

OTHER ASSETS (CURRENT)

Prepaid expenses

Advances for supply of goods and sarvices
Balances with government authorities*

* Includes balances of Goods and Services Tax

Tin Million
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
16,613.3 13,686.2
278.5 163.0
16,891.8 13,859.2
(278.5) (163.0)
16,613.3 13,696.2
5.9 1.3
2.6 1.9
85 3.2
36.2 7.3
36.2 7.3
30.6 253
30.6 253
20.7 17.3
1.7 14.4
1,938.9 3,006.0
1,961.3 3,037.7
93.8 71.5
818.5 2011
2,153.7 1,812.1
3,066.0 2,084.7
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Parliculars
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised

50,000,000 (March 31, 2021 50,000,000) equity shares of ¥ 10 each

Issued, subseribed and fully paid up
4,00.50,000 (March 31, 2021 4,00,50,000) equily shares of Z 10 each (Refer nole 42)

OTHER EQUITY
Relfer statement of changes in equity for delailed movement in ather equity balance

A. Reserves and surplus
Capital reserve

Capital redemption reserve 3 10,000 (March 31, 2021 : T 10,000)
Retained earnings

B. ltems of other comprehensive Income (OCI)
Debtinstrument through OCI

Total of other equity

Nature and purpose of reserves

Capital reserve - Capital reserve was created pursuant to the scheme of arrangement in tha nature of g
holding company to the Company as approved by the Hon'ble High Court of Guijarat and Hon'ble High Col

T in Million
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

500.0 500.0

400.5 400.5

400.5 400.5
185,654.3 185,654.3

0.0 0.0

66,317.5 37,805.7
251,971.8 223,460.0
- (14.2)

251,971.8 223,445.8

Capital redemption reserve - This reserve was created on redemption of preference shares and is a non distribulable reserve,

Debt instruments through other comprehensive income - This represents the cumulative gain and loss arising on fair valuation of debt instruments measured
through other comprehensive income. This will be reclassified to statement of prafit or loss on derecongnition of debt instrument.

BORROWINGS (NON-CURRENT)
Unsecured
Loans from banks (Refer note 46)

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (NON-CURRENT)
Derivatives not designated as hedges

PROVISIONS (NON-CURRENT)
Employee benefits (Refer note 44)

BORROWINGS (CURRENT)

Unsacured
Loans repayable on demand from banks
Loans from banks (Refer note 46)

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CURRENT)
Derivatives nol designated as hedges

Interest accrued

Security deposits

Payables on purchase of property, plant and equipment
Payable to Employee

Other payable

OTHER LIABILITIES (CURRENT)
Statutory remitlances
Advances from customers

PROVISIONS (CURRENT)
Employee benefits (Refer note 44)
Product retuns (Refer note 48)

pin off and transfer of domestic formulation undertaking of the

2,290.2 4,643.1
2,299.2 4,643.1
151.3 171.1
151.3 1711
854.1 665.3
854.1 665.3
212.8 355.4
2,299.2 2,321.6
2,512,0 2,677,0
151.3 85.5
13 21

25 5.5
54.2 142.0
31315 2,176.5
346.6 346.6
3,667.4 2,758.2
678.6 412.9
23.0 0.4
701.6 413.3
3154 2423
2,801.5 2,553.7
3,116.9 2,796.0
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2022

Particulars

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Revenue from contracts with custemers (Refer note 55)
Other operating revenues (Refer note 53)

OTHER INCOME
Interest income on :
Bank deposits at amortised cost
Loans at amontised cost
Other financial assels carried at amortised cost
Others [includes interest on income tax refund 2 Nil (March 31, 2021 : ¢ 168.0 Millian) )

Net gain on sala of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Net gain arising on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Net loss on sale of financial assets measured al fair value lhrough other comprehensive
income

Insurance claims

Lease rental and hire charges

Miscallaneous income

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Raw materials and packing materials
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Purchases during the year
Inventories at the end of the year

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN-TRADE AND WORK-IN-
PROGRESS

Inventeries al the beginning of the year

Inventories at the end of the year

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expense

*includes gratuity expense of ¥ 165.1 Million (March 31, 2021 : 2 153.4 Million)

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense for financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Exchange difference regarded as an adjustment to borrowing cost

Interest expense olhers (includes interest on income tax and lease liability)

OTHER EXPENSES
Consumption of material, stores and spare parts
Conversion and other manufacturing charges
Power and fuel
Rent
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Selling, promoetion and dislribution
Commission on sales
Repairs and maintenance
Printing and stationery
Travelling and conveyance
Freight outward and handling charges
Communication
Provision / wrile off / (reversal) for doubtful trade receivables / advances
Professional, legal and consultancy
Donations
Loss an sale/write off of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, net
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translations
Payments to auditors (net of taxes, where applicable)
For audit
Reimbursement of expenses
Miscellaneous expenses *

in Million
For Year ended For Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
85,990.9 67,461.9
1,541.6 1,340.4
87,532.5 68,802.3
9.1 6.1
3,554.6 2,3275
315 201.3
3,695.2 2,534.9
420.7 309
99.3
(34.3)
105 8.0
230.8 235.4
76.2 17.6
4,398.4 2,826.8
3,388.8 3,097.3
13,226.9 11,268.0
(3,395.7) (3,3688.8)
13,220.0 10,976.5
2,662.2 1,941.6
(2,985.5) (2,662.2)
{323.3) (720.6)
9,877.2 8,016.1
506.9 452.2
131.8 835
10,515.9 8,551.8
43.9 62.0
165.2 (178.9)
148.3 23.8
357.4 (93.1)
428.3 317.4
289.4 261.6
420.4 383.1
14 4.9
164.2 120.4
2623 2100
3,407.8 2,856.4
114 8.9
2315 206.1
1744 125.7
1,644.4 984.0
293.3 186.9
75.9 70.8
57.8 8.0
1,7423 1,314.2
239.7 2111
27.2 504
(13.2) (15.9)
7.3 6.9
0.1 0.1
667.4 1,687.9
10,143.0 8,998.9

* Miscellaneous expenses includes contributions made towards Covid relief including PPE kits, sanitisers, distributions of medicines etc,



SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2022

Particulars

35 TAX RECONCILIATION

Reconciliation of income tax expense
Profit before tax
Enacted income lax rate (%) applicable to the Company #

Income tax expenses calculated at enacted income tax rate

Effect of expenses that are not deductible

Effect of deduction ¢laimed under chapter VI A of Income Tax Act, 1961

Effect of income that is exempt from lax

Ulilisation of earfier years tax losses on which no deferred tax asset was recognised

Revarsal of impairment loss of Samba unit peraining to assessment year 2017-18

Others
Tax Payable under MAT (minimum altemate tax)
Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

For Year ended
March 31, 2022

T in Million

For Year ended
March 31, 2021

34,676.4 19,0135
34.944% 34.944%
12,117.3 7,890.8
6,148.3 5,453.6
(14,385.8) (10,625.3)
7.8) (1.7
(252.4) (10.8)
(12.6) =

(3,538.9) (2,703.4)
6,070.0 3,972.9
6,008.1 3,966.1

# The tax rate used lor reconciliation above is the corporata tax rate of 34.944% (March 31, 2021: 34.944%) at which the Company is liable to pay tax on taxable income

under the Income Tax Act, 1961.



SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2022

NOTE: 36
Changes In financial Liabilities arising from tinancing activities T in Million
Particulars As at Cash Flows Non-cash changes As at
March 31, 2021 Acquisition/ | Fair Value Changes Others March 31, 2022
Foreign Exchange
Movement
Borrowings 7.320.1 {2,541.1) 322 4,811.2
Derivalives not designated as hedge 256.6 (74.2) 120.3 o 302.7
T in Million
Particulars As at Cash Flows Non-cash changes As at
March 31, 2020 Acquisition/ | Falr Value Changes Others March 31, 2021
Foreign Exchange
Movement
Borrowings 7.331.8 274.0 (285.7) - - 7,3201
Derivalives not designated as hedge 193.3 (53.7) 53.7 63.3 - 256,6
NOTE: 37
A CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR) T in Million
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Contingent liabilities
Liabilities disputed - appeals filed with respect to :
Income tax on account of disallowances / additions (Company appeals)
Excise duly / service taw/sales tax

Note: includes, interest lill the date of demand, wherever applicable

The Company has made provision an prospective basis to give impact of Provident fund judgement by Hon'ble Supreme Court of India (SC) daled
February 28, 2019. The Company will updale ils provision, on receiving further clarity.

Faotnote:
Future cash outflows in respect of the above malters are determinable only on receipt of judgements / decisions pending at various lorums /
authorilies.

Income tax matters where depariment has preferred an appeal against lavourable order received by the Company amounted 1o ¥ 18,716.4Million
(March 31, 2021 ¥ 18,716.4 Milion). These matters are sub-judice in various forums and pertains to various financial years.

il Commitments

Eslimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capilal account [nel of advances) *

Lelters of credit for imports

For derivatives related commilments (Refer Nole 39)

Lease related commilments (Refer Note 45)

* The Company is committed to pay milestone payments and royally on certain contracts, however, abligation to pay is contingent upon fulfilment of
conlraclual obligalion by parties to lhe contract.

24,582.9
1.379.2

404.1
56.4

14,362.6
1,015.5

297.2
10.3

Il Guarantees given by the bankers on behalf of the Company

318.3

4355

NOTE : 38
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company's capital management objeclives are:
- o ensure the Company's ability to continue as a going concern; and
- lo provide an adequate return to shareholders through oplimisation of debts and equity balance.

The Company monilors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of debl as

optimum overall financial structure.

presented on the face of the financial stalements. The Company's abjective for capital management is to maintain an

< in Million
As at As at
(1) Debt equity ratio March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Debl (includes non-current, current borrowings and current maturities of lease liabilities) 4,998.3 7,524.3
Total equity 252,372.3 223,846.3
Debt to total equity ratio 0.02 0.03




SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31 , 2022
NOTE: 39

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's aclivilies expose it lo a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credil risk
established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Gompany,
policies and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in

Credit risk

Creditrisk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contr,
from customers, loans and invesiments. Credit risk is managed through credil approvals, establishing credit limits and continuou:

granls credit lerms in the normal course of business,

Investments
The Company limils ils exposure 1o credil risk by generally invesling in liquid securities and only with counterparties that have a good credil rafing, The Company does not expect any losses from non-

performance by lhese counter-parties, and da

Trade receivables

es not have any significant concentration of exposures to specifi

Trade receivables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:

lo sel appropriate risk limils and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same. Risk
market conditions and the Company's activities.

ic induslry sectors or specific country risks,

and liquidity risk. The Company's risk management assessmen! and policies and processes are

ment and r

nent

actual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables
sly monitoring the creditworthiness of counterparty to which the Company

T in Million

Trade receivables Not due Less than 6 months| 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 As at
years March 31, 2022
(i) Undispuled Trade receivables — considered good 15,920.0 649.5 346 9.2 *0.0 - 16,613.3
{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase
in credit risk - - - - - - -
(iii) Undispuled Trade Receivables — credit impaired 6.7 17.7 19.2 46.7 471 714 208.8
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables —which have significant increase in
credit risk z . . : . .
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - 69.7 69.7
Total 15,926.7 667.2 53.8 55.9 471 1411 16,891.8
v Y23,007

T in Million

Trade receivables Not due Less than 6 months | 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years As at
March 31, 2021

(i) Undisputed Trade receivablas - considered gaed 13,1304 534.1 203 09 05 B 13,696.2
(i) Undispuled Trade Receivables — which have significant increase
in credit risk 5 5 3 o - 2 5
(iiy Undisputed Trade Receivables — credil impaired 4.2 68 6.3 132 3.4 59.4 93.3
(iv) Dispuled Trade Receivables—considered good . . = v - » “
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in
credit risk < = s . " z %
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - 69.7 69.7
Total 13.134.6 540.9 36.6 14.1 39 129.1 13,859.2

The Company has used expected credit loss (ECL) model for assessing the impairment loss. For the purpose,

into account external and internal risk factors and histerical data of credit losses from various customers.

the Company uses a provisi

T in Million
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Movement in the expected credit loss allowance on Irade receivables
Balance at the beginning of the year 163.0 144.6
Addition 116.2 26.2
Recoveries (0.7) (7.8)
Balance at the end of the year 278.5 163.0

Olher than Trade receivables, the Company has no Significant class of financial assets that are past due but nol impaired.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its fin
have sufficient liquidity to meet Iis liabililies when due,

ancial obligations as they become due. The Company manages ils liquidity risk by ensuring,
under both normal and stressed condilions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company's repu

The Company had unutilised working capilal lines from banks of % 1,200.0 Million as on March 31, 2022 ( ¥ 1,250.0 Million as on March 31,2021)

as far as possible, that it will always
tation.

ion malrix to compute the expected credit loss amount, The provision matrix takes




SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant undiscounted linancial liabilities :

Zin Million
Less than 1 1-3years More than 3 years As at
Particulars March 31, 2022
Non derivative
Borrowings 2,512.0 2,299.2 - 4,811.2
Lease liabilities 143 25.1 147.8 187.1
Trade payables 4,648.5 - 4 4,648.5
Olher financial liabilities 3,536.1 - o 3,536.1
Derivalive 151.3 151.3 - 3026
10,862.2 2,475.5 147.8 13,485.6
T in Millian
Less than 1 year 1-3years More than 3 years As at
Particulars March 31, 2021
Non derivative
Borrowings 2,677.0 4,643.1 - 73201
Lease liabilities 15.3 26.9 162.0 204.2
Trade payables 3,672.2 - 36722
Other financial liabilities 2,672.7 - - 2,672.7
Derivative 85.5 1711 - 256.6
98,1227 48411 162.0 14,1258
Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of fulure earnings, fair values or future cash llows th

Forelgn exchange risk

The Company's foreign exchange risk arises mainly from its foreign currency expenses, primarily in US Dallars
the Company's expenses measured in Indian Rupees may decrease and vice-

appreciales relative lo these foreign currencles,

currencies have changed substantially in recent periods and may continue to fluctuate substantially in the future.

a) Signilicant foreign currency risk exposure relaling lo borrowings and trade payables

(USD), Euros (EUR

at may resull from adverse changes in market rates and prices (such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange rales
esull of such adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market risk is altributable to all market risk-sensitive financial
long-term debt. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk
risk is a funclion of investing and borrowing activities and operaling aclivities in foreign currencies.

) and Japanese Yen (JPY). As a result, if the value of the Indian Rupee
versa. The exchange rale between the Indian Rupee and these foreign

Tin Million
As at Total
Particulars March 31, 2022
usop EUR JPY Others
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 490.6 24.6 *0.0 ‘6.1 521.3
Borrowing 2,526.5 - 2,017 - 4,598.2
3,017.1 24.6 2,071.7 6.1 5,119.5
*T 4,573
Tin Million
As at Total
Parliculars March 31, 2021
uso EUR JPY Others
Financial liabilitles
Trade payables 273.8 45.1 “0.0 0.3 319.2
Borrowing 3,657.3 - 3,307.4 - 6,964.7
39311 45.1 3.307.4 0.3 7.2839
“¥ 5323

b) Sensilivity

For the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, every 5% strengthening of the Indian rupee for the above mentioned financial liabililies would increase the Company's profil and increase the
Company's equity by approximately ¥ 256.0 Million and Z 364.2 Million r peclively. A 5% kening of the Indian rupee and the respeclive currencies would lead to an equal but opposile effect,

In management's opinion, the sensilivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent loreign exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the
year.
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c¢) Derivative contracts

The Company is exposed lo exchange rate risk thal arises from ils foreign exchange expenses, primarily in US Dollars, Euros, Japanese Yen, and foreign currency debt is primarily in US Dollars and
Japanese Yen (JPY). The Company uses foreign currency swap caontracts (“derivalives”) to miligate ils risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The counterparly for these conlracts is
generally a bank or a financial institution,

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that econamically hedge monelary assets and liabilities in lareign currencies and for which no hedge accounting is applied, are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss. The changes in fair value of the derivatives, as well as (he loraign exchange gains and losses relating to the monetary items, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The following table gives delails in respect of the notional amount of oulstanding foreign exchange derivalive contracts -
Amaunt in Million

Currency Buy / Sell Cross As at As al
Currency March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Derivatives not designated as hedges
Currency swaps JPY Buy uspD §315 $47.3
Interest rale swaps (floating to fixed) usp $33.3 $50.0

Interest rate risk

The Company has loan facilities on floaling interest rate, which exposes the Company to risk of changes in inlerest rates. The Company's Treasury Departmenl monitors the interest rate movement and
manages the interest rate risk by evaluating interest rate swaps etc. based on the market / risk perception.

As al March 31, 2022, the Company has loan facililies which are either on fixed interest rales or are managed by interesl rate swaps, hence the Company is nol exposed 1o Interest rate risk. For the years
ended March 31, 2022 every 50 basis point decrease in the floating interest rate component applicable on its closing balance of loans and borrowings would increase the Company's profit by
approximately ¥ 23.0 million. A 50 basis paint increase in floating interest rate would have led to an equal but opposite effect.

Commodity rate risk

Exposure to market risk with respect to commodily prices primarily arises from the Company’s purchases and sales of active pharmaceutical ingredients, including the raw material components for such
aclive pharmaceutical ingredients. These are commodity products, whose prices may fluctuate signiflicantly over short periods of time. The prices of the Company's raw materials generally fluctuate in lina
with commodily cycles, although the prices of raw materials used in the Company's aclive pharmaceutical ingredients business are generally more volatile. Cost of raw materials forms the largest portion
of the Company’s cost of revenues. Commodity price risk exposure is evaluated and managed through operating procedures and sourcing palicies. As of March 31, 2022, the Company had not entered
into any material derivalive contracts to hedge exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices.

NOTE: 40
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
T in Million
Particulars As at March 31,2022
Fair value through | Fair value through [ Amortised cost
profit or loss other
comprehensive
income
Financial assets
Invesimenls
In debentures/bonds/Mutual fund 33,042.4 - -
Trade receivables - - 16,613.3
Cash and cash equivalents - - 8.5
Bank balances other than above - - 36.2
Loans to employees / other parlies - - 311
Loans to related parties = - 56,171.9
Other linancial assels
Interest accrued - = 438.0
Security deposits - - 202.0
Refund due from government authorities - - 1,938.9
33,0424 - 75,439.9
Financial llabilities
Borrowings - - 4,811.2
Lease liabilities 187.1
Trade payables - - 4,648.5
Other financial liabllities - - 3,536.1
Mandatorily measured :
Derivalives nol designated as hedges 302.6 - 2
302.6 - 13,182.9
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T in Million
Particulars As at March 31,2021
Fair value through | Fair value through Amortised cost
profit and loss other
comprehensive
income
Financial assets
Investments
In debentures/bonds 379.8 -
Trade receivables = . 13,696.2
Cash and cash equivalenls - - 3.2
Bank balances other than above - - 7.3
Loans to employees / other parties - - 255
Loans to related parties - - 51,789.5
Other financial assets
Interest accrued - - 14.4
Securily deposils - - 187.4
Refund due from government authorities - - 3,006.0
- 3798 68,729.5
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 7.320.1
Lease liabilities 204.2
Trade payables - - 3,672.2
Olher financial liabilities - - 2,672.7
Mandatorily measured :
Derivatives not designated as hedges 256.6 - -
256.6 - 13,8692
T in Million
Particulars As at March 31,2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis at the end of each reporting period
Financial Assets
Investments
In debentures/bonds/Mutual funds 33,042.4 s ]
33,042.4 - -
Financial liabilities
Derivatives not designated as hedges - 302.6 -
- 3026 -
Particulars As at March 31,2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis at the end of each reporting period
Financial Assets
Investments
In debentures/bonds 379.8 - -
379.8 - -
Financial liabilities
Derivatives not designated as hedges - 256.6 -
. 256.6 $

Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in aclive markels lor identical assels or liabiliies lhat the entity can access at themeasurement date
Level 2: Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for lhe assel or liability, eitherdirectly or indirectly

Level 3: Inputs are unobservable inputs for the assel or liability.
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the period.

The management considers lhat the carrying amount of current linancial assets and current financial liabilities carried at amortised cost approximates their fair value.
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NOTE: 41
TRADE PAYABLES

DISCLOSURES UNDER THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006

The information regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the
upon by the audilors.

2 in Million
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Principal amounl remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year 493.1 152.6
493.1 152.6

exlenl such parties have been idenlilied on the basis of information available with the Company. This has been relied

There are no amounts of interest paid / due / payable during the year/ previous year / succeeding year, Also, Ihere is no amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of current

accounling year / previous accounting year.

Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31,2022 and March 31, 2021:

T in Million
Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years As at
March 31, 2022
OQutstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 478.7 = w . . 478.7
Outstanding dues of other than micro and small enterprises 3.580.4 433.8 1.4 50.7 79.1 4,155.4
Disputed dues of micro and small enlerprises < 14.2 3 - 0.2 14.4
Disputed dues of other than micro and small enterprises = = = = &
Total 4,059.1 448.0 114 50.7 79.3 4,648.5
T in Million
Not Due Less Ihan 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years As al
March 31, 2021
Outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 128.8 - E E - 128.8
Oulstanding dues of other than micre and small enterprises 3,066.8 306.3 57.8 34.6 54.2 a1519.7
Dispuled dues of micro and small enterprises - 20.1 2.1 0.1 1.4 23.7
Disputed dues of other than micro and small enterprises . = _ - - .
Total 3,195.6 326.4 59.9 34.7 55.6 J.672.2
NOTE: 42

DISCLOSURES RELATING TO SHARE CAPITAL

A Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to shares and repayment terms of capital
The Company has one class of issued share referred to as equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share, each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

B EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
No. of shares T In Million No. of shares T in Million
Reconclliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the
beginning and at the end of reporting period
Opening balance carried over as closing balance 4,00,50,000 4005 4,00,50,000 400.5
Add bonus share during the year - - - -
Closing Balance 4,00,50,000 400.5 4,00,50,000 400.5
Detalls of shareholders holding more than 5% in the Company and shares held by promoter
As at As at
Name of equity sharehoiders March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding
Sun Pharmaceulica! Industries Limited (holding and ullimate holding company) 4,00,50,000 100% 4,00,50,000 100%

No equity shares boughl back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting dale -
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C PREFERENCE SHARE CAPITAL

As at As al
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
No. of shares T in Million No. of shares T in Million
Authorised Share capital
Redeemable Prelerence shares of ¥100 each 40,00,000 400.0 40,00,000| 400.0
NOTE: 43
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Profit for the year (¥ in Million) - used as numarator for 28,578.3 18,615.3
calculating basic earnings per share
Weighted average number of shares used in compuling basic 40,050,000 40,050,000
earnings per share
Nominal value per share (in 3) 10 10
Earnings per share basic and diluted (in ¥) 713.56 464.80
NOTE: 44
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

Defined contribution plan

Contributions are made to Regional Provident Fund (RPF), Family Pension Fund, Employees Stale Insurance
employees and the Company make predetermined contributions 1o the Provident Fund and ESIC, contributi
contribulions are normally based on a certain percentage of the employee's salary. Amount recognised as

2021 : T 298.9 Million),

T in Million
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Contribution to Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund 337.7 2948
Contribution to ESIC and Employees Deposit Linked Insurance (EDLI) 4.1 39
Centribution to Labour Welfare Fund 0.1 0.1

Defined benefit plan

a) Gratuity

In respecl of Gratuity, & defined benefit plan, conlributions are made 1o LIC's Recos
employees are enlilled to specilic benelil at the time of retirement or lermination of th
member's length of service and salary at the time of relirement/termination age. Pri
Company reviews the level of funding in gratuity fund. The Company decides its centribution based on the

ovision for Graluity is ba

a level such thal the fund assets meels the requirements of gratuity payments in short to medium term,

b) Covid-19 Employee children educalion support

The Company has undertaken an obligation to provide financial support toward education expenses of the children of those employees who have unforiunalely lost their lives due to the COVID-19

pandemic.”

Risks

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

1) Investment risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to the market yields on government bonds denominated in Indian

Rupees. If the actual return on plan assel is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. However, the risk is partially mitigated by investment in LIC managed fund.

Scheme (ESIC) and other Funds which covers all regular employees. While both the
on to the Family Pension Fund and other Statutory Funds are made only by the Company, The
expense in respect of these defined contribution plans, aggregate to ¥ 341,9 Million (March 31,

gnised Group Graluity Fund Scheme. It is governed by the Payment of Graluity Act, 1972, Under the Graluily Act,
e employment on completion of five years or death while in employment. The level of benefit pravided depends on lhe
sed on acluarial valuation done by an independent acluary as at Ihe year end. Each year, the
results of its annual review. The Company aims lo keep annual conlributions relatively stable at

1) Interest rate risk - A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will be partially ofiset by an increase In the return on the plan's debt investments.

iy Longevity risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference 1o the best estimale of the mortality of plan participants both during and alter their employment. An
increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability,

iv) Salary risk - The present value of the defined benelil plan liabillty is calculated b

increase the plan’s liability.

y relerence to the fulure salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will
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Other long term benefit plan

Actuarial valualion for compensaled absences is done as al the year end and the provision is made as per Company policy wilh corresponding charge to lhe Stalement of Profit and Loss amounting lo T
296.2Million (March 31, 2021 T 201.0 Million) and it covers all regular employees. Major drivers in acluarial assumptions, typically, are years of service and employee compansation.

Obligation in respect of defined benefit plan and other long term employee benelit plans are actuarially determined as at the year end using the 'Projected Unit Credit' method. Gains and losses on
changes in acluarial assumplions relating lo delined benefit abligation are recognised in other comprehensive income whi gains and losses in respect of olher long term employee benefit plans are
recognised in the Profit and Loss.

% in Million
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Covid-19 Education Gratuity Gratuity *
(Unfunded) {Funded) (Funded)
Expense gnised In the stat of profit and loss (Refer
Note 32)
Current service cost 19.8 149.3 135.4
Interest cost - 75.7 68.7
Expected relurn on plan assets = (60.0) (50.7)
Expense charged to the statement of profit and loss 19.8 165.0 153.4
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation recognised in
other comprehensive income
Acluarial gain on defined benefit obligation - 1131 (25.3)
Acluarial gain / (loss) on plan assels - (11.0) 22
Income charged to other comprehensive income - 1021 (23.1)
Reconciliation of defined-benefit obligations
Obligation as at the beginning of the year - 1,212.5 1,057.2
Current service cost 19.8 149.3 135.4
Interest cost - 75.7 68.7
Benefits paid - {37.5) (23.5)
Actuarial gains on obligations
- due lo change in demographic assumptions - - u
- due to change in financial assumplions - 49.1 (48.2)
- due to exparience - 64.1 229
Obligalion as al the year end 19.8 1,513.2 1,2125
Tin Million
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Covid-19 Education Gratuity Graluity
(Unfunded) (Funded) (Funded)
Reconciliation of liability/(asset) recognised in the Balance
sheet
Present value of commitments (as per actuarial valuation) - 1,513.2 1,212.5
Fair value of plan assels - (1,188.9) (959.5)
Nel liability recognised in the financial statement 324.3 253.0
Reconciliation of plan assets
Plan assets as at the beginning of the year - 959.5 780.4
Expected return - 60.0 50.7
Acluarial gain - 11.0 (22)
Employer's conlribution during the year - 195.9 154.1
Benefits paid - (37.5) (23.5)
Plan assels as al the year end 1,188.9 959.5
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Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Covid-19 Education Gratuity Gratuity
{Unfunded) (Funded) (Funded)
Assumption
Discount rate 6.85% 6.75% 6.25%
Expected return on plan assels N.A. 6.75% 6.25%
Expected rate of salary increase N.A. 10.00% 9.00%
Interest rate guarantee N.A. N.A, N.A.
Mortality Indian Assured Indian Assured | Indian Assured Lives
Employee turmover N.A, 12.40% - 13.45% 12.40% - 13.45%
Retirement Age (years) N.A. 60 €0
T in Million
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Covid-19 Education Gratuity Gratuity
{Unfunded) (Funded) (Funded)
Sensitivity analysis*;
The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on melhod
that extrapolates the impacl on defined benefit obligation as a
reasonable change in key assumplions occuring at the end ol lhe
reporling period
Impacl on defined benelit obligation
Della effect of +1% change in discount rale (1.4) (100.1) (78.7)
Delta effect of -1% change in discount rate 1.5 1139 B9.4
Delta effect of +1% change in salary escalalion rate = 108.2 86.4
Della effect of -1% change in salary escalation rate - (98.2) (77.7)
Della effect of +1% change in rate of employee turnover - (20.0) (13.7)
Delta effect of -1% change in rale of employee turmover - 22.3 153
Maturity analysis of projected benefit obligation
1st year 11 197.5 17.2
2nd year 1.4 1713 135.1
3rd year 1.2 197.0 133.4
4h year 1.4 165.5 152.4
5th year 1.8 1613 124.7
Thereaiter 26.2 1,838.0 1,334.6
The major categories of plan assels are as under :
Insurer managed funds (Funded with LIC) - 1,188.9 959.5
The conlribution expecled to be made by the Company for gratuily,
for financlal year ending on March 31, 2023 Is ¥ 481.9 Million
(Previous Year ¥ 380.1 Million)

*The sensilivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that exlrapolates the impact on defined benelfil obligation as a reasonable change in key assumption occurs al the end of
Ihe reporting period.

NOTE: 45
LEASES

a) The Company has recognised a lease liability measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, and right-of-use {ROU) asset at an amount equal to lease liability (adjusted for any
related prepayments). Management has exercised judgement in determining whether extension and termination oplicns are reasonably certain to be exercised. Expenses relaling lo short-lerm leases
and low-value assels for the year ended March 31, 2022 is T 11.1 Million (March 31, 2021 : T 4.9 Million).
Tin Million
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basls:

Not later than one year 29.7 32.4
Later than one year and not laler than five years 97.0 1058.7
Later than five years 2251 257.7
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T in Million
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Movement of lease liabilities

Opening balance 204.2 164.8
Additions. 0.8 53.5
Deletion (3.5) -

Interest on lease liabilities 16.6 17.3
Paymenl towards lease liabilities (31.0) {31.4)
Closing balance 187.1 204.2

b) The Company has obtained certain premises for its business operations (including furniture and fillings therein, as applicable) under operaling lease or leave and license agreements. These are
generally not non and range bet 11 months lo 20 years under leave and license or longer for other lease and are renewable by mulual consent on mutually agreeable lerms. The
Company has given refundable interest free security deposils where applicable in accordance with the agreed terms. These reflundable security deposits have been valued at amorlised cost under
relevant Ind AS. The company dose not have any minimum lease paymaent commilment in respect of assels taken on non cancellable aperaling lease.

NOTE: 46
BORROWINGS
Detalls of long term borrowings and current borrowing

Unsecured External Commercial Borrowings (ECBs) has one loan of USD 33.3 Million (March 31, 2021 : USD 50.0 Million) equivalent to ¥ 2,526.6 Milllon (March 31, 2021 : T 3,657.3 Million) and
one loan of JPY 3333.3 Million (March 31, 2021 : JPY 5000.0 Million) equivalent o ¥ 2,071.8 Million (March 31, 2021 : ¥ 3,307.4 Million). For the ECB loans oulslanding as at March 31, 2022, the
terms of repayment for borrowings are as follows:

{a) USD 33.3 Million (March 31, 2021 : USD 50.0 Million) equivalent to ¥ 2,526.6 Million (March 31, 2021 : ¥ 3,657.3 Million). The loan was laken on August 29, 2019 and is repayable in 3 equal
instalments of USD 16.67 Million each, The first instalment of USD 16.67 Million has been repaid during the year. Second instaiment of USD 16.67 Million is due on August 29, 2022 and last
instalment of USD 16.67 Million is due on August 29, 2023.

(b) JPY 3333.3 Million (March 31, 2021 : JPY 5000.0 Million) equivalent to T 2,071.8 Million (March 31, 2021 : ¥ 3,307.4 Milion). The loan was taken on August 29, 2019 and is repayable in 3 equal
instalments of JPY 1667 Million each. The first instalment of JPY 1667 has been repaid during the year. Second instalment of JPY 1667 Million is due on August 29, 2022 and last instalment of
JPY 1867 Million is due on August 29, 2023.

The Company has not defaulled on repayment of loan and interest payment thereen during the year. The alorementioned unsecured ECBs Is availed from bank in different currencies. USD ECB
loan is at floating rate linked to applicable Libor (1.30% p.a. as at March 31, 2022) and the JPY ECB loan is at fixed rate (0.47% p.a. as at March 31, 2022)

NOTE: 47
a RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES AS PER ANNEXURE "A"

b LOANS GIVEN TO RELATED PARTY

T in Million
Particulars As at Maximum balance As at Maximum balance
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021

Loans outstanding from a subsidiary *

Sun Pharmaceutical Medicare Limited 6,751.1 6,751.1 6,751.1 6,751.1

Sun Pharma Distribulors Limited - - - -

Realstone Infra Limited 613.9 6139 610.7 1.075.3
Loans outstanding from a fellow subsidiary *

Skisen Labs Private Limited 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3

Caraco Pharmaceuticals Private Limiled 0.2] 0.2 0.1 0.1

Softdeal Pharmaceutical Pvt Lid - 508.3 - -

Neelnav Real Estate Private Limiled 150.0] 150.0 o -
Loans outstanding from holding company*

Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited 48,656.4 59,169.0 44,427.3] 49,083.1

Includes interest accrued on loan amounting ¥ 43.9 Million in March 31, 2021.
These loans have been granied lo the above enlities for the purpose of their business.
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NOTE: 48

In respect of any present obligation as a result of pasl event that could lead to a probable outflow of resources, provisions has been made, which would be required lo settie the obligation. The said
provisions are made as per lhe best estimale of the management and disclosure as per Ind AS 37 - *Provisions, Contingent Liabiliies and Contingent Assets” has been given below :

T in Million
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Product and Sales Product and

related * Sales related *
At the commencement of the year 2,553.7 2,180.7
Add: Provision for the year 1,547.6 1,253.8
Less: Utilisation / Setllement / reversal {1,299.8) (880.8)
At lhe end of the year 2,801.5 2,553.7

(") includes provision for product returns

NOTE : 49

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

T in Million

Particulars Opening Recognised in Recognised in Closing Balance as
Balance as at profit and loss other at March 31, 2022
April 01, 2021 comprehensive
Income
Deferred tax liabilities in relation to:
Difference between written down value of property plant and (1,784.9) {276.5) (2,061.4)
equipment and capital work in progress as per books of
accounts and income tax
Total deferred tax liabilities (1,784.9) (276.5) - (2,061.4)
Deferred tax assets in relation to:
Allowance for doubtiul debts 58.4 49.1 - 107.5
Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis 297.0 47.6 357 380.3
Others 0.7 13.8 (7.6) 6.9
MAT credit entitlement 1,428.8 137.9 - 1,566.7
Total deferred tax assets 1,784.9 248.4 28.1 2,061.4
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) - (28.1) 281 -
Particulars Opening Recognised in prolit | Recognised in other| Closing Balance as at
Balance as at and loss comprehensive March 31, 2021
April 01, 2020 Income
Deferred tax liabilities in relation to:
Difference between written down value of property plant and (1,545.2) (239.7) (1,784.9)
equipment and capital work in progress as per books of accounts
and income lax
Total deferred tax llabilities (1,545.2) (239.7) - {1,784.9)
Deferred tax assets in relation to:
Allowance for doubtful debls 50.5 7.9 - 58.4
Expenses claimed for tax purpose on paymenl basis 276.2 28.9 (8.1) 297.0
Others - (0.6) 1.3 0.7
MAT credil entillement 1,218.5 210.3 - 1,428.8
Total deferred tax assets 1,545.2 246.5 (6.8) 1,784.9
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 3 6.8 (6.8) -
Unused tax losses and unused tax credits for which no As at Asal
deferred tax assets have been recognised are attributable to March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Tax losses (Capital in nature) 501.8 917.3
Deductible temporary differances 8,678.0 6,882.5
9,179.8 7.799.8
The unused tax credil will expire from financial year 2031-32 to 2036-37 and unused lax losses will expire from financial year 2021-22 lo FY 2029-30
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NOTE: 50

Corporate social responsibility (CSR)

As per Seclion 135 of the Companies Acl, 2013, a campany, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net prolit for the immediately preceding lhree financial

years on corporale social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR aclivilies are healthcare pregramme, education

projects, COVID-19 relief and rural development programme. A CSR commitiee has been formed by the Company as per the Act.:

T in Million

As at
March 31, 2022

Asal
March 31, 2021

(a) Amount required to be spent by lhe company during the year
{b) Amount of expendilure incurred

(c) Set-off of excess spent of previous years, il any

(d) Shorifall / (surplus) at the end of the year

(e) Total of previous years shortfall

(1) Reason for shorifall

(g) Details of related party transactions (as per Ind AS 24) #

movemenls in the provision during the year should be shown separately.

(h) where a provision is made wilh respect lo a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligalion, the

305.9
242.8
63.1

NA
154.2

2315
2951

(63.6)

NA
136.5

# Represents contribution to Shantilal Shanghvi Foundation and Foundation For Disease Elimination And Control Of India
Amount carried forward for set off in subsequent years from the excess spend in FY 2020-21 is T 0.5 Million as at March 31, 2022

NOTE : 51

programme, environment conservalion programme, drinking water

(1) The Company holds intangible assels of the Domestic Formulation undertaking {ranslerred to the Company on and wilh effect from the close of business hours on March 31, 2012, pursuant lo the
scheme of arrangement approved by the Hon'ble High Courts, in the nature of spin off and transfer of the said undertaking without consideration by Sun Pharmaceulical Industries Limited, the
Holding Company. These were accounted at fair value on the basis of an Independent Prolessional Valuer's report. The carrying value and remaining amorlisation period of such assets is ¥
30,465.4 Million (March 31, 2021 T 45,698.1 Million) and 3 years (March 31, 2021 4 ysars) respectively. The amortisation of intangible assels over 12 years is arrived at based on the
managementl's best eslimates of useful lives of such assels after due consideralion as regards their expected usage, the product life cycles, lechnical and technological obsolescence, market

demand for products, compelition and their expected fulure benelits to the Company.

(2) Detalls of Capital work-in-progress and Intangible assets under development :

A Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:

T in Million
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years As at
March 31, 2022
Capilal work-in-progress
Projects in progress 1471.2 10.3 4.0 - 1,485.5
Projects lemporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 1,471.2 10.3 4.0 - 1,485.5
Z in Million
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years As at
March 31, 2021
Capital work-in-progress
Projects in progress 128.4 20.2 1.8 57 156.1
|Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 128.4 202 1.8 57 156.1




SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
B Overdue Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:

T in Million
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years As at
March 31, 2022
Overdue Capital work-in-progress
Projecls in progress 56.4 = - = 56.4
Projecls temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 56.4 - - - 56.4
3 in Million
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years As al
March 31, 2021
Overdue Capital work-in-progress
Projecls in progress 86.0 43 T - 90.3
Projects temporarily suspended - = - = -
Total 86.0 4.3 - - 90.3
Intangible assets under devel ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:
% in Million
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years As at
March 31, 2022
Intangible assets under devalopment
Projects in progress - 33.0 - - 33.0
Projecls temporarily suspended = E = " -
Total : - 33.0 - - 33.0
T in Million
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years As al
March 31, 2021
Intangible assets under development
Projecls in progress 33.0 - 25.0 - 58.0
Projecls temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 3.0 - 25.0 - 58.0
Details of property not In the name of the Company as at March 31, 2022
T in Million
Particulars Gross carrying|Held in the name of |Whether promoter,|Period held — Reason for not being held in the
value director indicate range,|name of the company
or their relative or |where appropriate
employee
Leasehold Land 103.4 |Sun Pharma Drugs  |No 7-13 The lille deeds are in the name of
Private Limited erstwhile companies that were merged
wilh the Company under relevant
Freehold Land 37.9 [Sun Pharma Drugs  [No 5-10 provisions of the Companies Act,
Private Limited 1956/2013 in lerms of approval of the
Freehold Land 0.30 |Sun Pharma No 10 Honourable High Courts of respective

Medicalion Private
Limited

slates.




SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

(4) Analytical Ratios

The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

Remarks As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 Variance

Debt equily ratio = (Long-term borrawings + Short-term borrowings and lease Change due to increase in business 0.02 0.03 41.08%!
liabilities) / (Total equity) operalions
Debl service coverage ralio = {Profit/(loss) alter lax but before finance cosls, 15.93 13.47 18.25%)
deprecialion and amortisation and exceplional items) / (Finance costs + Short-term
borrowings + Short term Lease liabilities)
Current ralio = {Current assels) / (Current liabilities) Change due to increase in business 417 2.05] 103.07%

operalions
Inventory turnover ratio = (Cost of malterials consumed + Purchase ol slock-in-trade + 3.09 2.72 13.64%
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-lrade and work-in-progress) /
(Average inventory)
Net profil ratio (%) = {Net profit/{loss) afler tax) / (Total revenue from operalions) 32.65% 27.06% 20.67%
Trade receivables turnover ratio in no. of days = (Average trade receivables * no. of 64.33 81.03 20.61%
days) / (Revenue from conlracts with cuslomers)
Return on equity ratio (%) = (Net profil/(loss) aller tax / Average shareholders equity) |Impact due to profit for the year 7135.64%) 4648.01% 53.52%
Trade payable turnover ralio in no. of days = (Average trade payable * no. of days) / 77.63] 74.55 4.13%
(Purchases during the year)
Relurn on capital employed (%) = {Net Profit/{loss) after lax] / (Tolal assels -Total Impact due to profit for the year 12.9% 10.2% 26.73%
liabilities-intangible assals - intangible assets under development - Goodwill + Long
term borrowings + Shart term borrowings + Lease liabilities)
Return on invesiment = (Income generated from FVTPL Investment) / Weighted 3.49% 3.69% -5.56%
average FVTPL invesiment
Net capilal turnaver ralio = (Revenue Irom conlracts with customers) / (Current Change due to increase in business 1.85 5.20 -64.44%
assels - Current liabilities) operalians

NOTE : 52

The Company has only one reportable segment namely 'Pharmaceulicals' as per Ind AS 108 on Segment Reporting

NOTE : 53

In Compliance with Ind AS 20 on Government Grants, the amount of budgetary support under Goods and Service Tax, GST Relunds, lo be received from he Government of India amounting to
1,359.3 Million (March 31, 2021 ¥ 2,267.4 Million) in relation to the existing eligible units under the different Industrial Promotion Scheme have been recognised as "Other Operaling Income".

NOTE : 54

Figures for previous periods have been regrouped/reclassified wherever considered necessary.

NOTE : 55
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
The reconciling items of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the conlracted price are as follows T in Million
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Revenue as per coniracled price (net of return) 88,071.2 68,918.2
Less :
Provisien for sales return (247.7) {373.1)
Rebates, discounts and price reduction {1,832.7) (1,083.2)
(2,080.4) (1,456.3)
Revenue from contract with customers 85,990.9 67,461.9
T in Million
As at As al
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Contfract balances
Trade receivables 16,613.3 13,696.2
Conlract liabilities {23.0) (0.4)

Contract assets are Initially recognised for revenue Iram sale of goods. Contract liabililies are on account of uplront revenue received from customer for which performance obligation has not yel bean
completed.

The performance obligation is salisfied when control of goods and services are lransferred to customer based on the contraclual term. Payment term with customer vary depending upon the contractual
lerms of each conlract.
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NOTE: 56
OTHER NOTES

(a) No proceeding have been initiated or pending against the Company under the Benami Transaclions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the Rules made thereunder.
(b) The company does nol have any transaclions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.
(c) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year

(d) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in lhe nalure of loans 1o promolers, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or
jointly with any other person.

{e) The Company does nol have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the lax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provislons of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

(f) The Company has not been sanclioned working capital limils in excess of Rs. five crore in aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of lime of the year on the basis of security
of current assets.

(g) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government aulhority.

(h) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested either from borrowed lunds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds by the Campany to or in any olher person or enlity,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, direclly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or enlities idenlified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the company (“Ullimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, securily or the like on behalf of the Ullimate Beneliciaries.

(i) No funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entilies (*Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, thal the
Company shall, whether, directly or indireclly, lend or invest in other persons or entities idenlified in any mannger whalsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any quarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneliciaries

NOTE : 57
The Company conlinues to monitor the impact of the Covid-19 on ils business, including its impact on cuslomers, supply-chain, employees and logistics. Due care has been exercised, in concluding on

significant accounting judgements and estimates, including in relalion to recoverability of receivables, assessment for impairment of intangibles, Investments and inventory, based on the information
available to date, while preparing the Company's financial as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022.

NOTE: 58

The date of implementation of the Code on Wages 2019 and the Code on Sacial Security, 2020 is yel lo be natilied by the GovernmenL. The Company will assess the impact of these Codes and give
elfect In the financial statement when the Rules/Schemes thereunder are notilied.

NOTE: 59

USE OF ESTIMATES, JUDGMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparalion of the Company's financial statements requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the diselosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates, Estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any fulure periods alfected. In particular, information about significant areas of eslimalion
uncertainly and critical judgments in applying accounling policies thal have the mest significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements Is included in the following nales:

Revenue [Refer nole 2(2.2)(n)]

Properly, plant and equipment [Refer note 2(2.2)(d)]

Intangible assets [Refer note 2(2.2)(e)]

As per our report ol even dale

ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited
ICAIl Firm registralion no: 324982E/ E300003

per Amit Singh SAILESH T. DESAI SUDHIR V. VALIA
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 408869 DIN No. : 00005443 DIN No. : 00005561

Mumbai, May 27, 2022

KIRTI GANORKAR €. S. MURALIDHARAN
Chiefl Executive Olficer Chief Financial Officer
MEETAL SAMPAT
Company Secretary

Membership No. : A18249
Mumbai, May 27, 2022
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Ind AS- 24 - " RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES "

ANNEXURE "A"

M

Names of related parties and description of their relationships

Holding Company
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited

Wholly Owned Subsidiary
Universal Enterprises Private Limiled
Sun Pharmaceutical Medicare Limited
Sun Pharma Distributors Limited
Realstone Infra Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries, Inc.
Aditya Acquisition Company Limited
Neetnav Real Estate Private Limited
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries (Europe) B.V.
Foundation for Disease Elimination and Control of India
Softdeal Pharmaceutical Private Limited

Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Sudhir Vrundavandas Valia
Sailesh Trambaklal Desai
. Kalyanasundaram lyer Natesan Subramanian
Kirti Wardhaman Ganorkar

Others (Entities in which the KMP and relatives of KMP have control or Significant influence)
Makov Associates Ltd.
Shantilal Shanghvi Foundation
Alfa Infraprop Pvt. Lid.
Sidmak Laboratories (India) Private Limited
Sun Pharma Advanced Research Company Limited
United Medisales Private Limited
Sun Petrochemical Private Limited
PV Power Technologies Pvt Ltd
Shanghvi Finance Private Limited
Kism Textiles Pvt Ltd

Zenotech Laboratories Limited

Sun Pharma ANZ Pty Ltd

Sun Pharma Japan Limited.

Taro Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd
Skisen Labs Pvt Ltd.

Caraco Pharmaceuticals Pvt. Ltd

Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Chief Executive Officer
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(1) Detail of related party transaction during the year ended March 31, 2022

% in Million
Type of Transaction Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Purchase of goods 3,867.6 3,076.7
Holding Company 3,714.2 2,920.0
Subsidiaries 17.8 326
Fellow Subsidiaries 0.1 -
Others 135.5 124.1
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 1,422,6 5.8
Holding Company 12.8 3.3
Subsidiaries - 2.0
Fellow Subsidiaries 1,409.8 -
Others - 0.5
Revenue from contracts with customers, net of returns B85,687.8 67,266.7
Holding Company 2,559.7 2,229.2
Subsidiaries 82,874.2 64,876.3
Fellow Subsidiaries 85.2 -
Others 168.7 161.2
Sale of property, plant and equipment 1.9 6.2
Holding Company 1.9 6.2
Receiving of service 1,305.1 1,296.7
Holding Company 420.4 612.4
Fellow Subsidiaries - -
Others 884.7 684.3
Reimbursement of expenses paid 248.0 65.5
Holding Company 192.4 4.2
Subsidiaries - 1.9
Fellow Subsidiaries 30.1 249
Others 255 345
Rendering of service 291.8 257.3
Holding Company 264.0 257.3
Fellow Subsidiaries 27.8 ]
Reimbursement of expenses received 120.6 68.3
Holding Company - 0.2
Subsidiaries 119.0 68.1
Fellow Subsidiaries 1.6 -
Loans given 86,517.6 103,133.7
Holding Company 85,611.2 95,133.0
Fellow Subsidiaries 903.2 0.4
Subsidiaries 3.2 8,000.3
Loans received back 82,135.2 64,568.2
Holding Company 81,382.1 62,904.8
Fellow Subsidiaries 753.1 -
Subsidiaries - 1,663.4
Interest income 3,554.6 2,269.3
Holding Company 3,064.9 2,156.6
Subsidiaries 484.8 1127
Fellow Subsidiaries (March 31, 2021 : T 173) 4.9 0.0




SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
Detail of related party transaction during the year ended March 31, 2022

T in Million
Type of Transaction Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Lease rental and hire charges (Income) 223.3 228.1
Holding Company 2215 228.1
Subsidiaries 0.9 -
Fellow Subsidiaries 0.9 -
Rent expense / Payment towards Lease Liabilities 22.2 20.9
Holding Company 12.2 10.9
Subsidiaries 0.3 0.3
Fellow Subsidiaries 0.1 0.8
Others 9.6 8.9
Advance Given 579.2 -
Holding Company 579.2 -
Donation 154.2 136.5
Fellow Subsidiaries 42 36.5
Others 150.0 100.0
Remuneration 71.6 67.9
Key management personnel # 71.6 67.9

# Key Management Personnel who are under the employment of the Company are entitled to post employment benefits and other long term employee
benefits recognised as per Ind AS 19 - 'Employee Benefits' in the financial statements. As these employee benefits are lump sum amounts provided on
the basis of actuarial valuation, the same is not included above and there is no Share-based payments to key management personnel of company.

Balance Qutstanding as at the end of the year % in Million
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Receivables 16,486.6 13,543.8
Subsidiaries 16,448.0 13,512.9
Fellow Subsidiaries 13.9 -
Others 24.7 30.9
Payable 613.0 727.7
Holding Company - 428.1
Subsidiaries - 34.7
Fellow Subsidiaries 37.3 17.0
Key management personnel 0.1 -
Others 575.6 247.9
Loan given 56,171.9 51,789.5
Holding Company 48,656.4 44,427 .3
Fellow Subsidiaries 150.5 0.4
Subsidiaries 7,365.0 7,361.8
Lease Liabilities 167.2 173.4
Holding Company 77.3 81.5
Subsidiaries 35 a5
Others 86.4 88.4
Advance for Supply of Goods/Services 579.2 -
Holding Company 579.2 -
Accrued Interest income on loans and advances 436.3 -
Subsidiaries 436.3 -
Fellow Subsidiaries (March 31, 2022 : ¥ 27,813) 0.0
Security Deposit given 88.0 88.0
Fallow Subsidiaries 875 87.5
Others 0.5 0.5

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on an arm's length basis. Outstanding trade balances at the year-end are unsecured and
seftlement occurs in cash, There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.




